o 
JUL 232012NO. 12-0203 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRG NI ROAY L. PERRY II. CLERK 
SUPREME COURT OF APPEAl.S 

OF WEST VIRGINIA 

CHARLESTON 

JOHNNIE FLUKER, JR., 

Plaintiff, 

v. 	 Civil Action No. 09-C-110 

DAN CAVA, STEVEN HALL, SONNY NICHOLSON, 

AND DAN'S CAR WORLD, LLC, D/B/A 

DAN CAVA'S TOYOTA WORLD, 


Defendants, 

DAN CAVA, STEVEN HALL, AND 
DAN'S CAR WORLD, LLC, D/B/A 
DAN CAVA'S TOYOTA WORLD, 

Third-Party Plaintiffs, 

v. 

NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY 
OF PITTSBURGH,fa., 

Third-Party Defendant. 

FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF MARION COUNTY, WEST VIRGINIA 
HONORABLE DAVID R. JANES, JUDGE 

AMENDED BRIEF OF THE APPELLANTS, DAN CAVA, STEVEN HALL

I. Statement of the Kind of Proceeding 
and Nature of the Ruling Below 

On April 3, 2009, a civil action was instituted against the 

appellants alleging that the plaintiff was unlawfully discriminated 

against due to his race. Record at Page 00001. On June 23, 2010, 

the appellants filed a motion seeking leave to file a third-party 

complaint against the appellee based upon the refusal of the 

appellee to provide insurance coverage pursuant to an insurance 

policy purchased by the appellants from the appellee. Record at 

00069. 

On November 12, 2010 the circuit court granted the motion of 

the appellants for leave to file the third-party complaint. Record 

at 00080. The third-party complaint was subsequently promptly 

filed on December 2, 2010. Record at 00082. 

On August 30, 2011, the appellee filed a motion for summary 

judgment asserting that certain claims asserted in the third-party 

complaint were barred by the statute of limitations in spite of 

West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 which tolls the running of any statute 

of limitations with respect to third-party complaints during the 

pendency of the underlying action. Record at 00093. Ignoring this 

statutory section, the circuit court, on January 3, 2012, granted 

the motion for summary judgment with respect to those claims 

against the appellee. It is from this Order that the appellants 

appeal. Record at 00210. 
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II. Assignments of Error 

The appellants, Dan Cava, Steven Hall and Dan's Car World, LLC 

d/b/a Dan Cava's Toyota World, respectfully assert that the Circuit 

Court of Marion County, West Virginia, was wrong in refusing to 

apply West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 to toll any statute of 

limitations with respect to all of the allegations contained in the 

third-party complaint against the appellee. The circuit court's 

decision has the effect of multiplying legal proceedings and 

amounts to a waste of judicial economy. 

III. Statement of Facts 

1. The appellee sold an employer' s liability coverage policy 

to the appellants with an effective date of November 22, 2006. 

Coverage under this policy and renewals thereof were consistently 

purchased on behalf of the appellants up through and including the 

policy at issue in this action with an inception date of February 

27, 2009, and an expiration date of February 27, 2010. Record at 

00084. 

2. The EEOC complaint filed on behalf of the plaintiff, 

Johnnie Fluker, Jr., was dismissed with a finding of no probable 

cause by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. Accordingly, 

there is no preclusive effect or other detriment suffered by the 

appellee as a consequence of any EEOC investigation. Record at 

00084. 

3. The motion to file the third-party complaint against the 

appellee was served on Jun 23, 2010. Record at 00069. 
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4. On November 12, 2010, the circuit court granted the 

appellants leave to file the third-party complaint which was 

subsequently filed on December 2, 2010. Record at OOOBO and at 

000B2. 

5. The appellants gave appropriate and proper notice of the 

insti tution of this civil action to the appellee, however, the 

appellee failed to take any action with respect to said notice, 

resulting in a judgment with respect to liability being entered 

against the appellants. Record at 00025. 

6. The appellants, without any assi stance from the appellee, 

filed a motion to vacate the judgment as to liability, which was 

subsequently granted by the circuit court. Record at 00093. 

7. The appellee filed a motion for summary judgment 

asserting that the third-party complaint was not timely filed with 

respect to certain causes of action despite the pending notice for 

leave to file the third-party complaint. 

IV. Summary of Argument 

The circuit court incorrectly concluded that the third-party 

complaint filed by the appellants against the appellee was not 

tolled by the operation of West Virginia Code § 55-2-21. The 

circuit court took an unduly narrow view of West Virginia Code § 

55-2-21 and this Court's decision in J. A. Street & Associates, 

Inc., v. Thundering Herd Development, LLC, 2011 WL 7431493 (W.Va. 
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Sup. Ct. 2011).1 Accordingly, pursuant to West Virginia Code § 55

2-21 the third-party complaint and all allegations thereof was 

timely filed. 

V. Statement Reaarding Oral Argument 

Pursuant to Rule 19(a), the appellants, Dan Cava, Steven Hall 

and Dan's Car World, LLC d/b/a Dan Cava's Toyota World, believe 

that oral argument should be held in this case as it involves the 

error in the application of this Court's decision in J. A. Street 

& Associates, Inc., v. Thundering Herd Development, LLC, 2011 WL 

7431493 (W.Va. Sup. Ct. 2011) and West Virginia Code § 55-2-21. 

Further, oral argument pursuant to Rule 19(a) is warranted, as this 

case involves a fairly narrow issue of law. 

VI. Points and Authorities 


State Cases 


J.A. 	Street & Associates, Inc. v. Thundering Herd Development, LLC, 
2011 WL .7431493 (W.Va. Sup. Ct. 2011) 

Magnet Bank v. Barnett, 187 W.Va. 435, 419 S.E.2d 696 (1992) 

Noland v. Virginia Insurance Reciprocal, 224 W.Va. 372, 686 
S.E.2d 23 (2009) 

Painter v. Peavy, 192 W. Va. 189, 451 S.E.2d 755 (1994) 

Walker v. Option One Mortgage Corporation, 220 W.Va. 660, 649 
S.E.2d 223 (2007) 

Wilt 	v. State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company, 203 W.Va. 165, 
506 S.E.2d 608 (1998) 

This opinion has been withdrawn from the bound volume, 
therefore, the WestLaw citation is being utilized. 
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statutes and Regulations 

West 	Virginia Code § 55-2-21 

Rules of Appellate Procedure 

West 	Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure Rule 19(a) 

Rules of Civil Procedure 

West 	Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 14 

West 	Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 14(a) 

VII. Discussion 

A. Standard of Review 

As the circuit court entered summary judgment in favor of the 

appellants, Dan Cava, Steven Hall and Dan's Car World, LLC d/b/a 

Dan Cava's Toyota World, this Court's review is de novo. Painter 

v. Peavy, 192 W. Va. 189, 451 S.E.2d 755 (1994). The circuit court 

in this action was incorrect in granting summary judgment, based 

upon a misapplication of the law. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court Incorrectly Applied West Virainia Code 
§ 55-2-21 and Narrowly Construed the Decision of West 
Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals ~properly Refusing to 
Toll Certain Allegations of the Third-Party Complaint. 

The motion for summary judgment should have been denied as 

West Virginia Code §55-2-21 provides that any statute of limitation 

is tolled with respect to claims which may be asserted by third

party complaint after the filing of a civil action and during its 
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The motion to file the third-party complaint and thependency. 

third-party complaint were filed during the pendency of the above

styled action. Record at 00069 and at 00082. 

The appellee asserted that the statute of limitations with 

respect to the extra-contractual claims of the third-party 

complaint expired on Noverrlber 16, 2010, however, the motion to file 

the third-party complaint was filed well before this date on June 

23, 2010. Record at 00069. Accordingly, any statute of limitation 

with respect to the allegations of the third-party complaint were 

tolled and thus the third-party complaint was timely filed. 

The appellee sold the employer's liability coverage policy at 

issue in this action to the appellants on or about November 22, 

2006. Record at 00084. Coverage under this policy or renewals 

thereof were consistently purchased on behalf of the appellants up 

through and including the date of the allegations of the complaint. 

Record at 00084. 

The motion to file a third-party complaint against the third

party defendant, National Union Fire Insurance Company of 

Pittsburgh Pennsylvania, was served on June 23, 2010. Record at 

00069. On November 12, 2010 the circuit court granted the 

appellant leave to file the third-party complaint which was 

subsequently filed on December 2, 2010. Record at 00080. 

The statute of limitations with respect to the claims asserted 

in the third-party complaint did not expire as this civil action is 

pending and the third-party complaint was filed during the pendency 
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of this action. West Virginia Code §55-2-21 provides as 

follows: 

After a civil action is commenced, the running 
of any statute of limitations shall be tolled 
for, and only for, the pendency of that civil 
action as to any claim which has been or may 
be asserted therein by counterclaim, whether 
compulsory or permissive, cross-claim or 
third-party complaint; Provided, that if any 
such permissive counterclaim would be barred 
but for the provisions of this section, such 
permissive counterclaim may be asserted only 
in the action tolling the statute of 
limitations under this section. 

As the third-party complaint was filed during the pendency of 

the above-styled civil action any statute of limitations with 

respect to the third-party defendant was tolled by the operation of 

West Virginia Code §55-2-21. Accordingly, the motion for summary 

judgment should have been denied. 

The circuit court relied upon two decisions of this Court in 

granting the motion for summary judgment. Those actions are Wilt 

v. State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company, 203 W.Va. 165, 506 

S.E.2d 608 (1998) and Noland v. Virginia Insurance Reciprocal, 224 

W.Va. 372, 686 S.E.2d 23 (2009). However, neither of those actions 

involved the filing of a third-party complaint during the pendency 

of the original action. 2 

2 Additionally, neither of these actions addressed the 
applicabili ty of West Virginia Code § 55-2 -21, which tolls any 
statute of limitations during the pendency of the original action 
for claims including those asserted by a third-party complaint. 
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This Court recently addressed this issue in J .A. Street & 

Associates, Inc. v. Thundering Herd Development, LLC, et al., 2011 

WL 7431493 (W.Va. Sup. Ct. 2011) stating that the language of West 

Virginia Code § 55-2-21 is nondiscretionary, mandatory and clearly 

provides that during the pendency of a civil action the statute of 

limitations with respect to any "crossclaim" that has been or may 

be asserted therein is tolled. 3 

The third-party complaint at issue in this action was filed 

with leave of the circuit court. Record at 00080. Further, the 

appellee did not object to or move to dismiss the third-party 

complaint. 4 Record at 00302. 

The circuit court granted leave to file the third-party 

complaint pursuant to Rule 14 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil 

Procedure. Record at 00080. Accordingly, the statute of 

limitations with respect to the allegations contained in the third

party complaint are tolled as a matter of law by the express, 

nondiscretionary and mandatory language of West Virginia Code § 55

2-21. 

The reliance by the circuit court upon the language in J.A. 

Street, regarding a crossclaim is misplaced. The third-party 

complaint was properly before the circuit court and all of the 

The decision in J.A. Street, involved whether the statute 
of limitations had expired with respect to a crosscla~ asserted in 
that action as opposed to a third-party complaint at issue in this 
action. 

The motion for leave to file a third-party complaint was 
filed on June 23, 2010 well within the time period asserted by the 
third-party defendant to be the statute of limitations. 
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allegations contained in.the third-party complaint revolved around 

the same operative facts. Record at 00084. 

Those operative facts, include the following: 

(1) 	 The allegations by the plaintiff that the 
appellants engaged in wrongful conduct towards the 
plaintiff; 

(2) 	 The purchase by the appellants of insurance 
coverage from the appellee; 

(3) 	 Whether or not the insurance coverage sold by the 
third-party defendant to the appellants provides 
coverage for the allegations asserted against the 
defendants by the plaintiff; and, 

(4) 	 Whether the appellee engaged in wrongful conduct in 
refusing to defend or otherwise act appropriately 
with respect to the purchased insurance coverage. 

All of these questions and assertions are raised by the complaint, 

the defenses of the defendants, the allegations of the third-party 

complaint and the defenses thereto by the appellee. Record at 

00001; at 00009; at 00039; at 00050; at 00059; at 00084; and, at 

00220. 

The appellee did not assert that the third-party complaint was 

not appropriate pursuant to Rule 14 of the West Virginia Rules of 

Civil Procedure. Record at 00220. In fact, the appellee filed a 

counter-claim with respect to the third-party complaint seeking a 

declaratory judgment regarding the availability of insurance 

coverage. Record at 00220. Clearly, there is a logical 

relationship between all of the allegations of the third-party 

complaint and the allegations of the original complaint filed by 

the plaintiff. 
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Rule 14 (a) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, 

provides that a third-party plaintiff may cause a summons and 

complaint to be served upon a person not a party to the action who 

is or may be liable to the third-party plaintiff for all or part of 

the plaintiff's claim against the third-party plaintiff. The 

third-party complaint in this action falls precisely within the 

confines of this rule. Record at 00084. 

This Court addressed Rule 14(a) of the West Virginia Rules of 

Civil Procedure in Magnet Bank v. Barnett, 187 W.Va. 435, 419 

S.E.2d 696 (1992). In Magnet Bank, it was determined that a claim 

is defined transactionally and has nothing to do with the legal 

theory upon which a party relies. This Court further stated: 

The fact that the third-party complaint may be 
based upon a different legal theory from the 
underlying case is irrelevant; the question 
is whether the assertion of liability against 
the third-party defendant is derivative of the 
same transaction, occurrence or nucleus of 
operative fact as the underlying claim by the 
plaintiff. If the transactional relatedness 
is present, impleader is proper even if the 
third-party complaint will be tried to the 
Court while the underlying action will be 
tried to a jury. In sum, it is clear that the 
remedial purpose of Rule 14 requires that it 
be interpreted liberally to promote its 
underlying purposes. 

In Magnet Bank, the plaintiff sought to recover money borrowed 

by the defendants. The defendants filed a third-party complaint 

against an attorney who failed to properly record a lease which 

would have affected the liability of the defendants to the bank. 
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The circuit court reasoned that the original claim by the bank 

was to collect on a debt while the third-party claim centered on 

the theory of attorney malpractice in failing to record the lease 

and dismissed the third-party complaint. This Court reversed, 

finding a sufficient factual nexus to warrant the filing of a 

third-complaint pursuant to Rule 14(a) of the West Virginia Rules 

of Civil Procedure. In reaching this conclusion this Court 

reaffirmed the purpose of Rule 14(a) of the West Virginia Rules of 

Civil Procedure is to eliminate circuity of actions when the rights 

of all parties center upon a common factual situation. 

This result was also reached in Walker v. Option One Mortgage 

Corporation, 220 W.Va. 660, 649 S.E.2d 223 (2007). In Walker, this 

Court stated that one of the primary goals of any system of justice 

is to avoid piecemeal litigation which cultivates a multiplicity of 

suits and often results in disparate and unjust verdicts. 

Accordingly, in Walker, this Court permitted the filing of a third

party complaint which would further the purpose of Rule 14 to 

eliminate circuity of actions when the rights of all three parties 

center upon a common factual situation. 

In this action all the claims asserted originate from a common 

nucleus of fact, to-wit: the allegations of the plaintiff against 

the appellants. s The third-party complaint involves the claim by 

S It is important to note that the appellee did not seek to 
strike the third-party complaint, nor allege that the third-party 
complaint was inappropriate pursuant to Rule 14 of the West 
Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure. Record at 00220. 
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Bar No. 

for the 

the appellants that there is insurance coverage for the claims of 

the plaintiff and that the insurance company did not act 

appropriately in its handling of this claim. Record at 00084. 

This matter clearly results from a common nucleus of fact. 

Accordingly, as West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 is clear, 

nondiscretionary, and mandatory any statute of limitations with 

respect to claims of the appellants against the appellee involving 

the common nucleus of fact as alleged by the plaintiffs complaint 

were tolled. Accordingly, the circuit court erred in granting the 

motion for summary judgment. 

VIII. Conclusion 

Based upon the foregoing, the appellants, Dan Cava, Steven 

Hall and Dan's Car World, LLC d/b/a Dan Cava's Toyota World,