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

IV. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The January 3, 2012 Circuit Court Order reached the correct conclusion of law: 

Petitioners' Third-Party Complaint, which asserts that National Union violated the UTPA and 

committed common law bad faith, was appropriately time barred by Petitioners' failure to 

commence their lawsuit within one year after National Union's denial of coverage. Further, 

West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 did not toll the statute oflimitations regarding Petitioners' lawsuit 

against National Union. 

V. ARGUMENT 

A. 	 Petitioners' bad faith lawsuit against National Union is time barred. 

Petitioners sued National Union for alleged UTPA violations and common law bad faith. 

Such claims are subject to a one-year statute oflimitations. 

West Virginia Code § 55-2-12(c) states: 

Every personal action for which no limitation is otherwise prescribed shall be 
brought: 


************** 


(c) within one year next after the right to bring the same shall have accrued ifit be 
for any other matter of such nature that, in case a party die, it could 110t have been 
brought at common law by or against his personal representative. 

This Court has determined that "[c ]laims involving unfair settlement practices arising 

under the [UTPA] [citation omitted] are governed by the one-year statute of limitations set forth 

in West Virginia Code § 55-2-12(c)." Syl. pt. 1 of Wilt v. State Auto. Mut. Ins. Co., 203 W. Va. 
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165,506 S.E.2d 608 (1998). These claims fall within section (c) of West Virginia Code § 55-2

12 because they are tortious in nature and are of "recent statutory genesis [and] ... clearly did 

not survive at common law[.]" Id at 171,614. 

The one-year statute oflimitations contained in W. Va. Code § 55-2-12(c) also applies to 

common law "bad faith" claims. Syl. pt. 4 of Noland v. Va. Ins. Reciprocal, 224 W. Va. 372, 

686 S.E.2d 23 (2009). This Court noted in Noland that "when an insurer " refuses to defend its 

insured in an underlying case, any bad faith involved in that refusal to defend terminates when 

the refusal to defend is conveyed to the insured." 224 W. Va. at 388, 686 S.E.2d at 39. Thus, 

this Court held: 

In a fIrst-party bad faith claim that is based upon an insurer's refusal to defend, 
and is brought under [the UTPA] and/or as a common law bad faith claim, the 
statute of limitations begins to run on the claim when the insured knows or 
reasonably should have known that the insurer refused to defend him or her 
in an action. 

Syl. pt. 5 ofNoland (emphasis added). 

In Noland, this Court held that this standard (i.e., when the insured knows or reasonably 

should have known that the insurer refused to defend) was satisfIed as a matter of law when the 

insurance company sent" a denial letter to the insured. 224 W. Va. at 389, 686 S.E.2d at 40. 

In the instant matter, National Union sent a denial letter to Attorney Schillace on 

November 11,2009, and he received it on November 16,2009. (A.R. 00184 - 00186 and 00187 

- 00189). Yet, Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union was not fIled until December 2, 2010. 

This was clearly more than a year after Attorney Schillace had" received the denial letter from 

National Union. Therefore, it is beyond dispute that, but for the application of West Virginia 

Code § 55-2-21 to toll the applicable one-year statute of limitations, Petitioners' bad faith lawsuit 

against National Union is time barred. 
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B. 	 West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 does not toll the statute of limitations as to 
Petitioners' UTP A and bad faith lawsuit against National Union 

1. The applicable law. 


West Virginia Code §55-2-21 states: 


After a civil action is commenced, the running of any statute of limitation shall be 

tolled for, and only for, the pendency of that civil action as to any claim which has 
been or may be asserted therein by counterclaim, whether compulsory or 
permissive, cross-claim or third-party complaint: Provided, that if any such 
pennissive counterclaim would be barred but for the provisions of this section, 
such permissive counterclaim may be asserted only in the action tolling the statute 
of limitations under this section. This section shall be deemed to toll the running 
of any statute of limitation with respect to any claim for which the statute of 
limitation has not expired on the effective date of this section, but only for so long 

. as the action tolling the statute of limitations is pending. 

The only case from this Court that provides guidance regarding the proper interpretation 

of West Virginia Code §55-2-21 is J. A. Street & Associates, Inc. v. Thundering Herd 

Development, LLC, _ W. Va. -' 724 S.E.2d 299 (2011). In J. A. Street, Thundering Herd 

Development ("THD") filed a lawsuit against a geotechnical engineering finn, S & ME, for its 

alleged ne~igence in site preparation recommendations for the construction ofa Target store and 

shopping center in Huntington, West Virginia. Over four years later, THD amended its 

complaint to name J. A. Street and other defendants. J. A. Street filed a cross-claim against S & 

ME seeking damages for recovery of money expended to remediate settlement damage caused 

by settlement of fill material used at the construction site by S & ME. J. A. Street also sought 

contribution and indemnification from S & ME for any judgment THD may obtain against J. A. 

Street.2 

Almost two years later, J. A. Street sought leave to amend its cross-claims to include 

more specific allegations against S & ME in regard to S & ME's alleged negligence in failing to 

2 It is worth reiterating that, in the instant matter, Petitioners never sought a determination of coverage under the 
insurance policy for potential damages they might owe to Fluker in Fluker's lawsuit against Petitioners. They only 
sued National Union for bad faith. 
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identify potential groundwater problems in the fill material used at the construction site. J. A. 

Street's amended cross-claim also sought recovery of the money it expended to remediate the 

settlement issues on the construction site. The circuit court granted S & ME's motion to dismiss 

the amended cross-claims, finding the claims barred by the statute of limitations because J. A. 

Street had knowledge of an independent action against S & ME in 2003, six years before the 

amended cross-claim was filed. 

On appeal, the issue was whether West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 applied to toll the statute 

of limitations in regard to J. A. Street's amended cross-claim~. In its analysis, this Court found 

that the statute should be applied as written: During the pendency of a civil action, the statute of 

limitation shall be tolled as to any cross-claim that has been or may be asserted therein. Id., 

Syllabus Point 8. 

However, this Court's analysis did not end there. The Court went on to examine whether 

the pleading at issue was properly classified as a cross-claim under Rule 13(g) of the West 

Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure. The Court examined case law from other jurisdictions that 

interpreted the definition of cross-claim, as well as case law from other jurisdictions that 

interpreted the definition of a counterclaim under Rule 13(a), since both subparts of Rule 13 

require that such claims arise out of the same transaction or' occurrence as the original action. 

Based on case law from other jurisdictions~ this Court issued a new Syllabus Point (Syllabus 

Point 9) which defmes the standard in West Virginia for when a cross-claim arises out of the 

same transaction or occurrence as the original action. This Court ultimately remanded the case 

to the Circuit Court for a factual determination as to whether the cross-claim in question satisfied 

the requirements outlined in Syllabus Point 9. 724 S.E.2d at 309. 
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2. Applying J. A. Street to a third party claim. 

In order to properly examine whether West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 tolls the statute of 

limitations regarding Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union, this Court should apply the 

same logic here that it applied in J. A. Street. West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 states that, after a 

civil action is commenced, the running of any statute of limitation shall be tolled for the 

pendency of that civil action as to a third party complaint. However, as in J. A. Street, the 

analysis cannot end there. It must be asked: Is Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union 

properly classified as a third party complaint under Rule 14(a) of the West Virginia Rules of 

Civil Procedure? This is the precise analysis that was used by the Circuit Court. 

Rule 14(a) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure states, in relevant part: 

When defendant may bring in third party.-At any time after commencement of 
the action a defending party, as a third-party-plaintiff, may cause a summons and 
complaint to be served upon a person not a party to the action who is or may be 
liable to the third-party plaintiff for all or part of the plaintiff s claim against the 

third-party plaintiff. 


Looking beyond the text of the applicable Rule of Civil Procedure (as this Court did in J. 


A. Street), West Virginia law is clear that "[aJ third-party complaint filed pursuant to Rule 14(a) 

must be based upon a theory of derivative or secondary liability." Christian v. Bank ofN. Y. 

Trust Co., N.A., 2010 WL 2465478, slip op. at 2 (S.D.W. Va. 2010) referencing Laughlin v. Dell 

Fin. Servs., L.P., 465 F.Supp.2d 563, 566 (D.S.C. 2006) (stating that "a third-party defendant's 

liability under Rule 14 must be secondary or derivative to the defendant's liability to the original 

plaintiff."). The West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals has defined "derivative" as '''that 

which has not origin in itself, but owes its existence to something foregoing. '" Fn 4 of Davis v. 
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Foley, 	193 W. Va. 595, 598, 457 S.E.2d 532, 535 (1995) quoting Black's Law Dictionary 443 

(6th 	ed. 1990). "It is inherent in the nature of a derivative claim that the scope of the claim is 

defmed by the injury done to the principal." W. Va. Fire & Cas. Co. v. Stanley, 216 W. Va. 40, 

602 S.E.2d 483 (2004) quoting Jacoby v. Brinckerhoff, 735 A.2d 347, 351 (Conn. 1999). 

Therefore, following the analysis outlined by this Court in J. A. Street, West Virginia 

Code § 55-2-21 does not toll the otherwise applicable one-year statute of limitations regarding 

Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union unless Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union is 

based on a theory of derivative or secondary liability, and the scope of Petitioners' lawsuit 

against National Union is defined by the injury for which Fluker has sued Petitioners. 

3. 	 Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union is not based on a theory of 
derivative or secondary liability, nor is its scope def'med by the injury for 
which Fluker has sued Petitioners. 

It is imperative that this Court not misunderstand the nature of Petitioners' lawsuit 

against National Union. While it may seem unusual (it certainly seemed so to National Union), 

it is nevertheless true that Petitioners did not sue National Union to obtain insurance coverage for 

Fluker's lawsuit against them. Petitioners only sued National Union for alleged violations of the 

UTP A and common law bad faith. The absence of a request .for insurance coverage in 

Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union was so conspicuous that National Union felt it was 

necessary to file its own counterclaim seeking a declaratory judgment regarding insurance 

coverage. (A.R. 00220 - 00239). 

In order to follow the proper J. A. Street analysis, it is appropriate to compare the Fluker 

lawsuit against Petitioners to Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union. The following is a 

synopsis ofFluker's lawsuit against Petitioners: 

• 	 Fluker seeks to prove that he was wrongfully terminated from his employment 
with the Petitioners in violation of West Virginia law. 
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• 	 Fluker claims he was subject to a racially hostile environment. 

• 	 Fluker asserts that he was subjected to derogatory comments. 

• 	 Fluker asserts that his final paycheck was untimely. 

• 	 Fluker asserts that Petitioners' conduct was intentional and malicious and 
unlawful. 

In contrast, the following is a synopsis ofPetitioners' lawsuit against National 

Union: 

• 	 Petitioners seek to prove that National Union violated the UTP A and 
committed common law bad faith in the handling of the claim presented by 
the Petitioners. 

• 	 Petitioners allege National Union misrepresented pertinent policy provisions. 

• 	 Petitioners allege National Union failed to acknowledge and act reasonably 
promptly on communications. 

• 	 Petitioners allege that National Union failed to adopt and implement 
reasonable standards for the prompt investigation of claims. 

• 	 Petitioners assert a failure to timely affirm or deny coverage. 

• 	 Petitioners assert a breach of the common law duty of good faith in the 
handling of this claim. 

UTPA and common law bad faith actions are tort actions. Noland, supra, 224 W. Va. at 

383, 686 S.E.2d at 34. Petitioners have pled tort claims by suing National Union for alleged 

UTP A violations and common law bad faith. Petitioners did not assert any contract claims for 

insurance coverage under The Policy in their Third-Party Complaint.3 So, after being sued in a 

3 Petitioners' Civil Case Infonnation Statement filed with their Third-Party Complaint specifically identified this 
matter as an "Other Tort" in reference to the "Type of Case." The box for "Contract" actions is not checked. (A.R. 
00083). 
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wrongful termination tort lawsuit, Petitioners sued National Union for the completely different 

torts of allegedly violating the UTP A and committing common law bad faith. 

Is Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union derivative of Fluker's lawsuit against 

Petitioners? Is the scope of Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union defined by the injury for 

which Fluker has sued Petitioners? "Not under any reasonable analysis. UTPA and bad faith 

lawsuits are about the conduct of the insurance company during the claim handling process, 

whereas a wrongful termination lawsuit (with racial discrimination overtones) is about whether 

the employer improperly terminated an employee's employment. National Union was not in any 

way involved in the events that led Petitioners to terminate Fluker's employment. Fluker could 

have never filed a direct action against National Union for the termination of his employment. 

National Union's claim handling activities have no tortious nexus of any kind to the termination 

of Fluker's employment. 

P~titioners' tort lawsuit against National Union for bad faith clearly does not arise out of 

the same transaction or occurrence that surrounded the termination by Petitioners of Fluker's 

employment. The law applicable to Plaintiff Fluker's tort claim for wrongful termination 

(typically characterized as LaborlEmployment law) is completely different from Petitioners' tort 

claim for a bad faith lawsuit (typically characterized as InsurancelBad-Faith law). 

There is no mutuality of proof or evidence to be presented in these actions between 

Plaintiff Fluker's claims and Petitioners' Third-Party claims. At a (hopefully fictional) unified 

trial of these two disparate lawsuits, not only would Fluker be attempting to prove completely 

different facts from those at issue in Petitioners' bad faith case ~gainst National Union, but 
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Petitioners' attempts to make any sort of case against National Union would severely hurt their 

chances of successfully defending against Fluker's lawsuit. Petitioners cannot prove any aspect 

of their bad faith case without informing the jury of the possible presence of liability insurance, 

which would run the risk of substantially prejudicing the jury. There is no logical overlap of 

relevant evidence between these two lawsuits and as such, there was absolutely no . reason why 

Petitioners had to await a ruling upon their motion for leave to file the lawsuit as a third party 

complaint; they had the right to file it as what it really was: an independent lawsuit. 

Simply put, these two lawsuits would never be tried at the same time. They really are 

two separate tort lawsuits for two separate torts committed at separate times, with separate and 

dissinrilar relevant evidence being used to prove two very different things. 

Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union is not derivative of Fluker's lawsuit against 

Petitioners. Thus, Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union is not properly classified as a third 

party complaint under Rule 14(a) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, West Virginia 

Code § 55-2-21 does not toll the otherwise applicable one-year statute of limitations regarding 

Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union. Petitioners' failure to timely file their lawsuit 

should carry the consequences intended by the statute of limitations, and West Virginia Code § 

55-2-21 should not create a safe harbor for a lawsuit that is clearly time barred. 

4. Petitioners' misapplication of J. A. Street. 

Petitioners would have this Court summarily discount its holdings in J. A. Street on the 

basis that J. A. Street dealt with a "cross-claim" not a ''third-party'; complaint. However, this is 

short-sighted. The statute that was interpreted in J. A. Street was West Virginia Code § 55-2-21. 

That statute deals with cross-claims, counterclaims and third party complaints. Unlike a valid 
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counterclaim or cross-claim, and, unlike many third party complaints, Petitioners' lawsuit against 

National Union clearly could have been (and should have been) filed as a separate lawsuit. J. A. 

Street contains a thoughtful analysis of how to apply the statute. No court trying to determine 

whether West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 applies to toll a statute of limitations regarding a cross

claim, counterclaim or third party complaint can ignore the analysis contained in J. A. Street. 

Petitioners also argue that, because their lawsuit against National Union was allowed to 

be filed as a third party complaint, Syllabus Point 8 of J. A. Street dictates that the statute of 

limitations is tolled, end of story. According to Petitioners, West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 tolls 

the statute of limitations as to third party complaints, their lawsuit against National Union was 

filed as a third party complaint, so the statute of limitations is tolled. Of course, J. A. Street did 

not stop with such a simplified analysis. It would have been a very different opinion if it had. In 

J. A. Street, this Court went beyond the simple application of the tolling portion of West Virginia 

Code § 55-2-21 and looked at whether the pleading in question was properly classified as a 

cross-claim under Rule 13(g) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil ProcedUre. The Court also 

went beyond the wording ofRule 13(g) and looked to case law to help it craft a test for whether a 

pleading is properly classified as a cross-claim for the purpose of applying 'West Virginia Code § 

55-2-21. The Court issued a new Syllabus Point (Syllabus Point 9) which defines that standard, 

and remanded the case to the Circuit Court for a factual determination as to whether the cross

claim in question satisfied the requirements outlined in Syllabus Point 9. 724 S.E.2d at 309. It 

would be a mistake for this Court to ignore the analysis it gave this issue less than a year ago. 

5. 	 Petitioners' "estoppel" argument regarding the timing of National Union's 
Motion for Summary Judgment is without merit. 

Petitioners argue that their Third-Party Complaint was filed with leave of the Circuit 
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Court and claim that National Union "did not object to or move to dismiss the third-party 

complaint.'.4 National Union did, in fact, object to the Third-Party Complaint and reserved its 

right to move to dismiss the Third-party Complaint should discovery and investigation reveal 

that the Third-Party Complaint failed to state a claim upon which relief could be granted. 

Furthermore, National Union reserved the right to assert the defense that the Third-Party 

Complaint was barred by the statute of limitations. (A.R. 00220 - 00239). National Union's 

decision to file a declaratory judgment counterclaim did not concede the appropriateness of the 

Petitioners' Third-Party Complaint under Rule 14(a). National Union properly preserved its 

right to raise this issue, and then dealt with it at the appropriate time. After a contentious 

discovery period and additional investigation, National Union specifically addressed the statute 

of limitations affirmative defense by filing its Motion for Summary Judgment. Such cannot be 

seen as a valid basis for the application of estoppel. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

Petitioners' lawsuit against National Union is clearly barred by the applicable one-year 

statute of limitations. Only West Virginia Code § 55-2-21 can save Petitioners' lawsuit from that

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